
    

 

Minutes approved 10-21-14 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
James Carius Community Room 
Tuesday, September 16, 2014 – 3:45 p.m. 

  
Committee Members Present: Chairman Mike Harris, Darrell Meisinger, Monica 

Connett, Jim Donahue, Nick Graff, Brett Grimm, Dean 
Grimm, Terry Hillegonds, Carroll Imig, Joe Wolfe  

 
Committee Members Absent:  Tim Neuhauser 
 
  
 
MOTION  MOTION BY MEISINGER, SECOND BY GRAFF to approve the 

minutes of the August 19, 2014 meeting. 
 
 On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 Chairman Harris moved to the discussion regarding hiring an 

Economic Development Coordinator.  Kim Uhlig, Morton Economic 
Development, was introduced to the Committee and presented 
information to the Committee. 

 
 Uhlig provided packets of information to Committee members.  She 

stated that she and her counterparts met with the Economic 
Development Technical Committee and they recommended to 
move forward to the Human Resource Committee.  The Tazewell 
County Strategic Plan included hiring an Economic Development 
Coordinator for the County.  The Plan also includes business 
retention visits.   

 
 New Enterprise Zone applications are being filed to fulfill a state 

mandate.  The County is being divided into a North and a South 
Zone.  Tazewell County is the common denominator in both zones.  
There needs to be one entity that does all of the recording and 
complies with the new statutes.  A component in the new statute is 
a mechanism to be able to charge fees.  The last five years have 
been analyzed and through fees, there could be a revenue stream 
to fund up to $40,000 for an Administrator/ED Coordinator.   

 
 Brett Grimm inquired if a contracted consultant could do this.  Uhlig 

stated that was a recommendation at one time.  In the handouts 
she provided is a scope of work for this position.  It does not include 
the Enterprise Zone requirements.  There was some discussion 
regarding the FFCI and EDC as brand new entities.  Uhlig stated 
that will be more regional but they could assist with tools and 
resources.  Uhlig stated that the smaller communities have very 

 



HHuummaann  RReessoouurrcceess  CCoommmmiitttteeee  SSeepptteemmbbeerr  1166,,  22001144  

 

 - 2 - 

specific needs to grow and expand.  There was discussion 
regarding overlap in services from EDC.  Uhlig stated the EDC are 
site selectors and do marketing for the region.   

 
 Dean Grimm stated we should go forward with this.  There is a 

need to have someone doing retention and the smaller 
communities need the assistance. 

 
 Graff asked for further explanation on the fee structure.  Uhlig 

stated the project would pay the fees.  Developers receive benefits 
for being in the enterprise zones and their construction costs have 
had no fees.  The fiduciary agent would be Tazewell County and all 
municipalities would have to approve Intergovernmental 
agreements so the proportionate fees could be collected. 

 
 Brett Grimm stated he would be more comfortable contracting the 

position out to show the value and asked if options could be 
presented.  Deininger stated tonight was a presentation for 
reconsideration and they will return with any information next 
month.   

 
 Uhlig stated by State statute there needs to be an Enterprise Zone 

Administrator in order to keep the zones.  She stated that 
Germantown Hills, Morton, Washington, East Peoria, Pekin and 
Tremont would be the only ones generating fees.  The larger 
communities are willing to designate a revenue stream to help fund 
for the rural communities as all in Tazewell will benefit.   

 
 Hillegonds stated we need someone to look out for the County and 

need someone on staff to answer questions and coordinate 
projects.  This group has come up with a revenue stream and now 
we need to work out the details.   

 
 Chairman Harris stated this will be on the October agenda. 
 
 Chairman Harris opened the discussion on performance evaluation 

process.  He stated he needs input.  There is a policy setting 
standards for evaluation ratings and it is not being followed.  There 
are too many employees receiving exceeds and outstanding.  We 
have an evaluation form that is difficult to use and several 
departments are using their own.  He met with Department Heads 
and Elected Officials to develop a trimmer evaluation form.  He 
suggested one solution is to give each office a dollar amount in the 
budget based on policy and let them distribute it as they see fit. 

 
 Dean Grimm stated the concept is good.  A universal evaluation 

forms may not work.  Donahue stated he has a problem with the 
whole process.  He has been through the grading system and staff 



HHuummaann  RReessoouurrcceess  CCoommmmiitttteeee  SSeepptteemmbbeerr  1166,,  22001144  

 

 - 3 - 

are over-rated and it costs money.  Brett Grimm provided an 
analysis of children in school in which their “job” was to color inside 
the lines.  Some are better at their “job” than others.  We need a 
grading system based on the job instead of the person.   

 
 Horan explained they hired a consultant to complete their 

evaluation forms as well as training for administration.  It is 
completely different than the past.  Fox stated they had a BOH 
member complete theirs and it took over 2 years to develop.   

 
 Chairman Harris stated there will be more discussions on this topic. 
 
 Chairman Harris opened the discussion regarding the Hay Group 

update.  He stated he received information on Monday and there is 
more to do.  He will continue to provide updates to the Committee.   

 
 The discussion on vacation carryover was opened.  Chairman 

Harris stated that there is some interest in PTO and he would like to 
bring that back for discussion.  The vacation carryover 
conversations have resulted in the general consensus of limiting to 
two weeks with a one week buy out.  It will come back next month 
with a resolution to amend the Personnel Policy. 

 
 Chairman Harris discussed the Hay Audit process.  He stated in the 

past we have completed the job evaluation and stopped.  When we 
assign points it will be put on a county wide spread sheet.  The next 
step is to implement an audit team for a random review based on 
tasks. 

 
 Chairman Harris opened the discussion on Board of Review wage 

increases.  Supervisor of Assessments, Gary Twist, provided a 
handout to Committee members.  Twist stated he was not looking 
for a dollar amount, he wanted an administrative tool for salary 
increases.  There is no mechanism in place for wage increases for 
BOR.  They keep our tax cycle on time and conduct fair hearings 
for those coming before them.  They are the only staff excluded. 
Dean Grimm stated they are deserving of a raise and a formula 
needs to be developed.  Brett Grimm inquired of their employment 
status.  Twist stated they must pass an IDOR examination and are 
entered into a pool until appointed.  Meisinger inquired of the hours 
worked.  Twist explained they work throughout the year and more 
during the tax season.  An average is 20 hours per week.  Graff 
stated he would like to see a comparison to other comparable 
counties.  He would then like to see them on an annual schedule 
that matches our part time employees. 

 
MOTION MOTION BY DEAN GRIMM, SECOND BY DONAHUE to move the 



HHuummaann  RReessoouurrcceess  CCoommmmiitttteeee  SSeepptteemmbbeerr  1166,,  22001144  

 

 - 4 - 

 Committee into Executive Session under 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(2) – 
Collective Bargaining/Salary Schedules at 4:49 p.m. 

 
 On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 Chairman Harris moved the Committee out of Executive Session at 

4:53 p.m. 
 
MOTION MOTION BY WOLFE, SECOND BY CONNETT to recommend to 

County Board to approve the bills as presented. 
 
 On voice vote, MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 Chairman Harris recessed the meeting at 4:55 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 (transcribed by S. Beeney)  
   


